PENNSYLVANIA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

INVITATION FOR BID 260299

MYSTERY SHOPPING SERVICES

STATEMENT OF WORK

OVERVIEW

The Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board (PLCB) is a multi-faceted agency responsible for the sale and control of alcoholic beverages throughout the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and is one of the largest purchasers of wine and spirits in the country.  The PLCB operates more than six hundred (600) retail outlets within a category management business model.  Over the last several years, the PLCB has taken a proactive approach to improving the customer experience within retail stores.  As a part of this proactive approach, the PLCB is seeking a way of evaluating how effective initiatives are deployed at the store level.  The PLCB wishes to contract with a mystery shopper service in order to gauge and report on customer service and promotion awareness at the store level.  The selected contractor would be required to provide mystery shopping services across the state in a timely and easy-to-use fashion. 

PLCB CONTRACTING OFFICER

The PLCB Contracting Officer is the PLCB official authorized to enter into and administer contracts and make written determinations with respect to contracts.  The PLCB Contracting Officer is Melinda John, Director of Purchasing and Contract Administration, Room 316, Northwest Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17124-0001, Email: meljohn@pa.gov.

ISSUING OFFICE  

This Invitation for Bid (IFB) is issued by the PLCB, Bureau of Purchasing and Contract Administration, Room 316, Northwest Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17124-0001, Email:  tamcquaid@pa.gov .  Tammy McQuaid is the Issuing Officer and the sole point of contact at the PLCB for this IFB.

PLCB CONTACT PERSON 

The PLCB contact person, defined as the PLCB employee charged with the day-to-day supervision of the performance of the services and who interacts with the contractor is, Missy Wydra, Bureau of Marketing Communications, Branding & Design, Room 204, Northwest Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17124-0001, Telephone:  717.783.3158; Email: mwydra@pa.gov. 


ADDENDA TO THE IFB

If the Issuing Office deems it necessary to revise any part of this IFB before the bid response date, the Issuing Office will post an addendum to the DGS website at www.emarketplace.state.pa.us.  It is the Bidder’s responsibility to periodically check the website for any new information or addenda to the IFB.

COST SHEET

Complete ATTACHMENT #1 COST SHEET FOR MYSTERY SHOPPING SERVICES IFB 260299, in its, entirety with no variations or conditions.

RESPONSE DATA

Bids must be signed in ink by an official authorized to bind the bidder to its provisions.  FAILURE TO SIGN THE BID FORM BOP-1206 SHALL DISQUALIFY YOUR BID IMMEDIATELY.  For this IFB, the bid must remain valid for at least ninety (90) days.  The contents of the bid of the successful bidder will be incorporated into the Contract.

Bid must be sealed and hand carried or mailed (U.S. Postal service, Fed Ex., etc.) to:

	PLCB Bureau of Purchasing & Contract Administration
	Invitation for Bid #260299
	Northwest Office Building, Room 316
	Harrisburg, PA 17124-0001

Bids must be received on or before December 8, 2014, no later than 1:00 P.M. 
Bidders mailing bids should allow time to insure timely receipt of their bid.  If a receipt is desired, send by U.S. certified or Registered mail.  Bid #260299 must be on the outside of the envelope.

Faxed or emailed bids will not be accepted.

BID TABULATIONS RESULTS

Results of this bid will be posted within 48 hours to the DGS website at http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/.  Bid results do not confer any contractual rights until a formal written contract has been executed by all necessary PLCB Commonwealth officials.  Any additional information will require a Right to Know request found at http://www.lcb.state.pa.us/portal/server.pt/community/bidopportunities/19114. 



PRIME CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITY

The selected contractor shall be required to assume responsibility for all services offered in this IFB.  Further, the PLCB will consider the selected contractor to be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual matters.

TERM OF CONTRACT

The contract shall commence upon written Notice to Proceed and continue for two (2) years.  The PLCB reserves the right to renew this contract for three (3) additional one (1)-year options.

REJECTION OF INVITATION FOR BID QUOTES

The PLCB reserves the unqualified right to reject any and/or all bids received as a result of this IFB, to waive technical defects or any informality in bids and to accept or reject any part of any bid if, in its judgment, the best interest of the Commonwealth is thereby served.

CUSTOMER REFERENCES

Prospective bidders must provide a minimum of three (3) retail references for which they have performed mystery shopping services.  References must include the customer name, current address, contact person and telephone number.  The PLCB reserves the right to contact any and all persons listed by the prospective bidder concerning past work experience.

INVOICING

The selected contractor shall invoice monthly on a per store basis and shall be compensated only for the shops which the PLCB reviews and approves as completed.

INCURRING COST

The PLCB is not liable for any cost incurred by anyone prior to issuance of a contract.  The PLCB will pay the contractor only for services rendered at the rates in the contract.

REQUEST FOR RATE ADJUSTMENT

The rates may be adjusted at the start of each contract option year in accordance with the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) for all U.S. Cities, as issued by the United States Department of Labor.  It is agreed that there will be no adjustments to the rates agreed under this Contract during the first  two (2) contract years.  

The following conditions and requirements apply:

a. The Contractor must make application for the increase, to be effective as indicated below, by notifying the PLCB Contracting Officer in writing of the new rates and effective date no later than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the end of the previous contract year.

b. The PLCB shall notify the Contractor in writing of its agreement/disagreement of the new rate.  

c. New rates shall be effective on either the first day of the new contract option year or at a later date if so requested by the Contractor.  The Contractor agrees that failure to apply for CPI-W increase on a timely basis as required in “a” above will result in Contractor's waiver of CPI-W increase for that contract year.

The CPI-W for August 2015 will be the base month.

The rates paid during the period from notification to proceed through the first two contract years shall be the rates listed on the IFB.

The percentage change for the rate in the first option year shall reflect the percentage change in the CPI-W from the base month to the August 2016 CPI-W.

The percentage change for the rate in the second option year shall reflect the percentage change in the CPI-W from August 2016 to the August 2017 CPI-W.

The percentage change for the rate in the third option year shall reflect the percentage change in the CPI-W from August 2017 to the August 2018 CPI-W.


GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

MYSTERY SHOP EVALUATION CRITERIA 

The selected contractor will evaluate stores based on a questionnaire designed by both the selected contractor and the PLCB.  The selection on products purchased by the shopper must include a random sampling of stocked products at various price points, including luxury product offerings.  Gift card purchases can be made however, gift card purchases must be limited to less than five (5) percent of total shops.

A shop will be deemed successful if a sale is made and the questionnaire is completed in full.  The same evaluation form should be used for all shops regardless of area or type of product purchased.

Shoppers selected by the contractor may elect to keep products purchased during the shops however, the shopper(s) may not charge the PLCB for any costs associated with the purchase of products.  The return of products is permitted; however, all returns must be coordinated with the PLCB.

All shops should utilize the same evaluation criteria in order to obtain measurable data.  Evaluation criteria should at a minimum include the information contained in Attachment #2.

All bidders submitting bids should include a sample of the evaluation to be used while conducting a mystery shop for the PLCB.  All bidders should also submit either as a part of their evaluation or as a separate attachment, the type of scoring system used to evaluate shops.  The selected contractor must possess the ability to integrate all PLCB questions into their evaluations, scoring and reporting methods.  The PLCB must also have the ability to alter the evaluation and scoring criteria while giving the selected contract fourteen days’ notice.

MYSTERY SHOP EVALUATION REPORTING 

All mystery shops will be reviewed electronically.  Reports must have the ability to be analyzed and compared between region, district, store and cluster over the course of the contract.  Reports should be quantifiable and show a history of each store which includes all comments associated with the shop.  Reports must include an electronic copy of the shop for review.

Individual mystery shop findings must be entered electronically into the selected contractors reporting system within forty-eight (48) hours of mystery shop completion.  Monthly compilations of mystery shops conducted must be electronically entered, ready for review in their entirety no later than the 15th of the month following the end of the month being reported.

All bidders must provide as a part of their bid a detailed explanation of their reporting system and software.  An example of reports generated should also be provided. 

MYSTERY SHOPPER QUALIFICATIONS

All shoppers chosen to conduct shops for this contract must be twenty-one (21) years or older and present themselves fit-for-duty when conducting shops.  All shoppers must also agree to abide by rules and/or processes of the PLCB.

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

The PLCB reserves the right to award this contract based on the total price quoted on the Cost Sheet, Attachment #1.

The selected contractor is expected to complete a comprehensive assessment of current levels of service within the PLCB retail stores.  The store assessment should take into consideration the geographic, store type, and cluster designation as indicated in Attachment #5.  This should be accomplished by conducting mystery shoppers shopping all stores throughout the state based on the following schedule:

1. Stores listed on Attachment #3 will be shopped every month for a total of twelve (12) shops per year, per store.  
2. Stores listed on Attachment #4 will be shopped quarterly for a total of four (4) shops per year, per store.

It should be noted that the stores listed on Attachments 3 & 4 are subject to change.



ATTACHMENT #1

COST:  Rate is to include shopping and reporting of each store.

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:

Section 1:  High-Volume Stores 

One (1) mystery shop and report should be provided for each store for each month of the calendar year.  See Attachment #3 for the list of stores in each Region.

	Region
	Number of Stores
	Cost per Store
	Total Cost per Region

	Region 1 - Philadelphia
	133 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Region 2 - Harrisburg 
	96 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Region 3 – Pittsburgh
	66 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Total Amount Bid for Section 1
	$Click here to enter text.




Section 2:  Remaining Stores

One (1) mystery shop and report should be provided for each store on a quarterly basis for a total of four (4) shops per year.  See Attachment #4 for the list of stores in each Region.

	Region
	Number of Stores
	Cost per Store
	Total Cost per Region

	Region 1 - Philadelphia
	38 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Region 2 - Harrisburg 
	119 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Region 3 – Pittsburgh
	155 Stores
	$Click here to enter text.
	$Click here to enter text.

	Total Amount Bid for Section 2
	$Click here to enter text.




607 stores total as of 09/04/14 – store counts on this attachment are subject to change.	
ATTACHMENT #2

The following is a list of criteria that should be evaluated while mystery shopping the PLCB stores.  The criteria are a minimum requirement and other evaluation criteria may be added at any time with fourteen days’ notice.

	Store Number
	Click here to enter text.
	Date and Time of Shop
	Click here to enter text.
	Address
	Click here to enter text.


	General Information
	Response

	Day of Visit
	Click here to enter text.
	Number of Customers
	Click here to enter text.
	Number of Employees
	Click here to enter text.
	Store Employee Name
	Click here to enter text.
	Item(s) shopped 
	Click here to enter text.
	Receipt Number
	Click here to enter text.


	Greeting / First Impression 
	Response

	Were you greeted warmly or acknowledged respectfully at the first opportunity for interaction between you and the employee?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, how long did it take the employee to greet you?
	Click here to enter text.
	Were you greeted with a smile and appropriate eye contact?
	Click here to enter text.


	Employee Professionalism / Productivity
	
Response

	Were all employees well groomed and wearing a name tag?
	Click here to enter text.
	 If not, explain in detail.
	Click here to enter text.
	Were all employees either interacting with customers or engaged in work-related activities?
	Click here to enter text.





	Facility – Exterior / Interior
	Response

	Was the exterior of the store clean and well maintained?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain.
	Click here to enter text.
	Was the interior of the store clean, well maintained and well lit?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain.
	Click here to enter text.
	Was the store well organized and were walkways free of clutter?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain.
	Click here to enter text.


	Facility – Merchandising / Shop Environment
	
Response

	Were all signs neat and orderly and without fading?
	Click here to enter text.
	Were all dated displays / promotional offers / signage / shelf tags current? (Check dates on signage.)
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain
	Click here to enter text.
	Were the prices of items clearly marked, including sale items?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain.
	Click here to enter text.
	Was a floor rack containing 6-bottle reusable wine tote bags visible and stocked with signage and pricing clearly marked?
	Click here to enter text.
	Were the following items on display and easily accessible: (Check all that apply)
□ Gift Cards
□ Taste Magazine
□ Accessories (corkscrews, gift bags, bottle toppers, etc.)
	Click here to enter text.


	Products & Service
	Response

	Were you able to easily locate the items you were looking for?
	Click here to enter text.
	If not, explain.
	Click here to enter text.




	Product Knowledge / Salesmanship
	Response

	Did an employee proactively inquire about your needs or assist you during your visit?
	Click here to enter text.
	Describe your interaction:
	Click here to enter text.
	Was the store employee knowledgeable and able to locate the product you were inquiring about either at that store or did they offer to call / check another location?
	Click here to enter text.
	Was the employee able to provide suggestion, recommendation or substitute products to meet your needs?
	Click here to enter text.
	 Did the employee listen and respond without interrupting your request(s)?
	Click here to enter text.
	 Was the employee enthusiastic and friendly throughout your entire interaction?
	Click here to enter text.
	Did the employee ask “Will that be all today?” AND/OR suggest additional items or accessories to go with your item?
	Click here to enter text.
	 If so, what was the item suggested? (Check all that apply.)
□ Gift Cards
□ Reusable Wine Tote
□ Accessory Item
	Click here to enter text.
	Were you requested to show identification prior to purchasing?
	Click here to enter text.
	If you were required to show identification, was the request courteous?
	Click here to enter text.
	During check out were you asked for your home zip code?
	Click here to enter text.
	Did the clerk handle your sale OR return in the following manner:
□Transaction processed in a timely     manner
□ Courteously
□ Thank you for your purchase
	Click here to enter text.




	Overall Impression
	Response

	On a scale of 1-5, 5 being the MOST SATISFIED, how satisfied were you with your visit today?
□ 1 – Extremely Dissatisfied
□ 2 - Dissatisfied
□ 3 – Satisfied
□ 4 – Very Satisfied
□ – 5 – Extremely Satisfied
	Click here to enter text.
	Based on this visit only, would you return to this store?
	Click here to enter text.
	Explain:
	Click here to enter text.


	Comments/Summary:  
Click here to enter text.




ATTACHMENT #5

PLCB CLUSTER DEFINITIONS & ANALYSIS


Effective –  09/09/14

Cluster 1 – Upscale Metro / Suburban (105 Stores / 36.9% TTL $ Sales)
· Avg. Household Income - $95K
· Education Level – 38.6% College Graduation Rate
· Ethnicity – No statistical significance
· Key Price Segmentation  – Super Premium
· Display Category Drivers – Specialty, US Chard, French, Scotch

Cluster 2 – Mid-Scale Suburban (123 Stores / 25.2% TTL $ Sales)
· Avg. Household Income - $72K
· Education Level – 26.9% College Graduation Rate
· Ethnicity – No Statistical Significance
· Key Price Segmentation  – No Discernable Driver
· Display Category Drivers – No Discernable Driver

Cluster 3 – Rural / Blue Collar (219 Stores / 26.7% TTL $ Sales)
· Avg. Household Income - $58K
· Education Level – 18.5% College Graduation Rate
· Ethnicity – 91.5% Caucasian
· Key Price Segmentation  – Value / Standard
· Display Category Drivers – Beverage, PA/NY, Blended, Canadian

Cluster 4 – Rural / Low Volume Rural (91 Stores / 3.7% TTL $ Sales)
· Avg. Household Income - $51K
· Education Level – 13.8 % College Graduation Rate
· Ethnicity – 97.2 % Caucasian
· Key Price Segmentation  – Value
· Display Category Drivers – Beverage, PA/NY, Blended, Canadian

Cluster 5 – Metro / Ethnic (53 Stores / 7.5% TTL $ Sales)
· Avg. Household Income - $48K
· Education Level – 17 % College Graduation Rate
· Ethnicity – 38.8 % African-American
· Key Price Segmentation  – Value
· Display Category Drivers – Dessert, Kosher, Brandy/Cognac, Gin

